
UNITED’ NATIONS

General Assembly
FORTY-FIFTH SESSION

OwDckJ  Recods

SIXTR COWITTER
36th meeting

held on
Friday, 9 November 1990

at 10 a.m.
New York

Chairman:

l a t e r :

SUWARY  RECORD OF THE 36th EaeETING

Mr. VAN DE VPLDE
(Viar-Chairman)

(Netherlands)

Mr. MIKULlUb
(Chairman)

(Caeohoslovakia)

CONTENTS

AQENDA ITEM 1421 REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW COM4188ION ON THE WORK OF ITS
FORTY-SECOND SESSION (~mjduid)

AQENDA ITEM 140: DRAFT CODE OF CRIMES AGAINST THE PEACE ARD SECURITY OF MANKIND
(continued)

AQENDA ITEM 144: REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMdITTEE ON TRR CURTER  OF TRE UNITED
NATIONS AND ON TRR STRENGTHENING OF TRR ROLE OF TRR ORGANIZATION  (m-)

This  record in subject IO corraztlon.
CorreAn~  should  be ml under the d~nrture  of r member of Ibe dalegatlon  concerwd

wirhln  me wed qM dote o/publkrurlm to the Chlelofthe  Omclrl  kcord#  Edl~lna  !Wlon,  Room DC2.B.I
2 United Nalonr  Plus.  l d Incorponk.J In I cm of the record.

Correctlonr  will be iwcd  rfkr the end oftbe semIon,  in a scp~nle  corrigendum  for each  Commina.

D i s t r .  GRNERJUl
A/C.6/4S/SR.36
19 November 1990

ORIGINAL: ENGLISH
go-57009  30506  (E)

/ . . .
n ix



A/C.6/46/88,36
Englirh
P a g e  2

AQENDA ITRM 1421 REPORT OF THE INTERNATIONAL LAW COM4ISSION  ON THE WORK OF ITS
FORTY-SECOND SESSION (m ) (A/45/10, A/45/469)

AGENDA ITEM 1401 DRAFT CODE OF CRIMRS AQAINST THR PEACE AND SECURITY OF MANKIND
(m) (A/45 /437 )

1, C@-m (Qhana), referring to the draft Code of Crimes against the Peace
and  Suavity  of Mankind, expressed his delegation’s agreement with the  v iew
reflected in paragraph 37 of the International Law Commission’s report (A/45/10)
that oomplioity, oonsgiraoy and attempt should be brought within the embit of the
draft Code aa separate offenoes, and placed in the part dealing with speoifio
offeaoe8. It would be up to the judges to decide whether those oonoepts were
applicable in sgeoifio  oases brought before them. Suoh an approach would ensure
that partioipants in a orime who otherwise might escape criminal responsibility on
the ground that they had not aotually partioigated in the oommiasion  of the orime,
but whose oonduot was in faot as regrehensible  as that of the prinoipal
Perpetrators, were duly oovered  by the Code, His delegation tended to favour the
original version of draft artiole 15 , on oomplioity, on aooount of its olarity.
The new version of draft artiole 16, on oonspiraoy, in simply referring to a
l’oommon  plango, avoided diffioulties in determining the point at which a g r e e m e n t
could be said to have been reaohed between the parties. The word “jointlyl’ in the
seoond  paragraph of draft artiole 16 was oonfusing and should be deleted.

2. His delegation agreed with the Jamaican delegation that to describe the
Provisions on oomplioity as the weak point of the International Convention on the
Suppression and Punishment of the Crime ofm was gratuitous and
unwarranted. The Convention did not, as was asserted in paragraph 47 of the
report, unduly widen the oirole of offenders. The Niirnberg  Tribunal had treated ae
aaoomplioes  those who had direoted, planned and organised the arir.les being
prosecuted, and there was no reason why the same definition oould not be refined
and applied to oases under the draft Code or the International Convention on the
Suppression and Punishment of the Crime of mia.

3. With regard to draft articles X and Y as submitted by the Special Rapporteur,
his delegation wished to make the general comment that the tendency to concentrate
on measures to ourb the supply of drugs while disregarding the growth in demand was
again evident in the formulations proposed by the Special Rapporteur. The problem
of consumption was addressed in the 1966 Convention against Illicit Traffic in
Narcotio  Drugs and Psychotropic Substances. While it might well be appropriate to
leave the issue of consumption to be regulated by national laws, the Commission
should at least consider the issue so as to dezer,nine to what extent it should also
be addressed in the draft Code.



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 3

(Mr.)

4. Although the artiole  relating to international terrorism seemed to confine the
oommission of the crime of terrorism to agents or representatlvee of a State, his
delegation thought it important, especially in the light of the call by some
delegations to expand the scope of the article to include individuals acting on
their own account, that a clear distinction should be drawn between freedom
fighters and terroriets. O n e  man’s  terror i s t  might  we l l  be  a n o t h e r ’ s  f reedom
fighter. The strugyle  of all peoples undwr  colonial and racist regimes  and other
forms of alien domination was a legitimate one, recognised  t o  be such under the
Charter of the Unitecl  Nations, Qeneral  Assembly resolution 1514 (XV) and the
Declaration of Human Rights. While freedom fighters and liberation movements
sought to uphold international law, terrorists sought to undermine it. That
distinction was fundamental in the eyes of his delegation,

5. The diff icult ies  st i l l  aris ing in connection with the question of  the
establishment of an international criminal jurisdiction suggested that time was not
yet  ripe f o r  an international  court  of  the kind outl ined in the report.  The
Commission’s present approach was possibly rather too smbitiouo, and a more
gradualist one might be advisable. He wondered whether, at the present stage, an
international court having only a review competence  might not be considered a good
start ing-point.

6. Mr.- (Chile), referring to chapter II of the report of the
International Law Commission (A/45/10), said that the concepts of complicity,
conspiracy and attempt should be dealt with in relation to each of the arimes
listed in the draft Code of Crimes against the Peace and Security of Mankind, so as
to faci l i tate their  application by the courts. Although he was inclined towards
the view that they should be included in the part of the draft Code dealing with
general principles, he was primarily interested in a precise and clear legal
definition of those concepts.

7 . He had some doubts concerning the concept of complicity reflected in the draft
Code in so far as the concept of perpetrator of a crime against the peace and
security of mankind was not defined. Another problem concerned the
characterisation  of acts committed after the perpetration of a crime as acts of
complicity. The concept of accessory after the fact appeared to be included,
although under the legislation of some countries, it was distinct from that of
accomplice.

8. With regard to conspiracy, he emphasieed that the offence involved was one in
which all participants were perpetrators. Accordingly, it would not be appropriate
to include in the definition of conspiracy acts which were committed jointly by
several persons, since that would limit participation, or the concept of
perpetrator, to those who physically carried out the crime.

9 . With regard to attempt, he agreed that  while i t  wae diff icult ,  but  not
impossible, to include it among the crimes against peace*  the same was not true in
respect of crimes aqainst  humanity. He also felt that attempt as envisaged in the
draft Code was not clearly differentiated from an abortive crime. He therefore



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 4

(Mr.)

suggested, first, that the concept of perpetrator of a crime against the peace and
security of mankind should be defined so that a distinction corld be drawn between
accomplice and accessory after the fact, and secondly, that the concept of an
abortive crime should be added to that of attempt. An abortlva crime would be one
in which the perpetrator had done everything in h?s power to execute the crime but
it hsd failed because of circumstances independent of his intention] attempt would
refer to cases in which the perpetrator commenced execution of a crime through
direct  acts  but  fai led to carry i t  through.

10. The legal  definit ion of  international  terrorislm in art icle 16 ae provis ionally
adopted also raised some questions. Firet, the terms “agents” and
“representatives” of a ltate were used without an indication of their specific
condent or of whether they were eynonyms, Secondly, the tolerating of act6
constituting terrorism was characterised as a crime. Not only did the draft
article not make clear what was meant by tolerating, but it also included an
element which more properly belonged to the concept of perpetrator. Thirdly, the
wording of the article did not provide a legal definition of a crime, but rather a
description of a type of conduct. Lastly,  he was not clear as  to the dist inction
between terrorism carried out by agents or representatives of a State and the act
of aggression referred to i n  paragraph 4(g) of draft article 12 as provisionally
adopted.

11. Turning to draft article 18, on the recruitment, use, financing and training
of mercenaries, he suggested that, in the interest of brevity, a formula could be
found which would make reference to the concepts laid down in the international
instruments in that area.

12. With regard to illicit drug trafficking, it would be more logical to delete
the phrase “by the agents or representatives of a State or by other individuals,”
from draft article X, as it was irrelevant from the point of view of the legal
definit ion of  the perpetrators. Likewise, the notion that such traffic constituted
a crime only if it was engaged in *‘on a large scale” should be broadened to include
the notion of  i ts  constituting a practice, in other words, a eerie6 of consecutive
acts, even if  each act  in i tself  was not  an operation o n  a large scale. The
provision concerning money-laundering would be more applicable to the definition of
accessory after the fact.

13. The question of establishing an international cridnal jurisdiction was
undoubtedly the most far-reaching and controversial of those submitted to the
Committee. In view of the complexity of the issue and the lack of precedents, it
would be preferable for the Commission, rather than presenting various options to
Member States, to indicate which option it regarded as most in keeping with the
current needs and possibi l i t ies. That was all the more necessary as the
establishment of an international crjminal  court to try individuals could
profoundly alter internal legal systems and even the very structure of the State.

14. Currently,  i t  was diff icult  for individual  States  to decide smong  the various
alternatives presented by the Commission, since the alternatives chosen by one



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 5

State would depend upon the decisions adopted by others. That consideration
notwithstanding, i f  such an international  jurisdict ion was established,  i t  should
be set up on the broadest and most effective basis poeeible. Efforts should be
made to explore the concept of a permanent court which would exercfee  exclusive
jurisdiction over all orimes against the peace and security of mankind, and to
which cases could be submitted by any State with an interest in the matter. Such
efforts might not lead to consensus, but consensus  achieved on a different basis
might not meet the desired objective.

15. B. 881(&S ( I srae l )  sa id  tha t ,  in  the  pas t , his delegation had voiced concern
at the manner in which the Commission had been compiling a list of international
crimes for the proposed Code. While the terms of reference made it clear that the
offences involved were crimes against the peace and security of mankind, his
country had Prom the beginning considered that the concept referred to the most
reprehensible of the crimes committed during the Second World War, Without wishing
to cast doubt on the serious nature of the crimes currently constituting the draft
Code, his delegation continued to have difficulty envisioning how the existing
series of  legal  and poli t ical  instruments,  including declarations,  resolutions and
conventions, could be merged into a single code of crimes against the peace and
security of mankind. Crimes must be included in the draft on the basis of their
being universally accepted as crimes against mankind. Characterisations made in
general terms or by reference to documents of a political character intended to
serve political organs did not necessarily accord with such a concept, and their
transposal to a jurisdictional body might lead either to their non-applicability or
to selective applicabil i ty  through polit ical ly oriented considerations.

16. As an illustration, he drew attention to the loopholss contained in two of the
draft articles provisionally adopted by the Commission, article 12, on aggression,
and article 14, on intervention, which might well have responded to the political
demands of some Member States. As a basis for implementation in the context of an
international criminal jurisdiction, however, they could raise very serious
questions of  applicabil i ty,  as  well  as  of  compatibi l i ty  with art icle  3, which dealt
with responsibility for crimes irrespective of motive. Until such time as a code
was produced which could be universally accepted as a legally substantive basis for
an international  criminal  jurisdict ion, i t  would be diff icult ,  i f  not  impossible,
to consider the establishment of an international criminal court which could
adjudicate on the basis of such a code.

17. With regard to draft article 16, on international terrorism as a crime against
peace, he said that the description of the elements of terrorism appeared to be
unduly restrict ive. The problems of the draft article began with its coverage only
of acts  of  individuals  representing States, and net acts of individual terrorism
committed by persons, terrorist orgaflieations  and other elements having no links
with agents or representatives of a State. Such acts were certainly crimes against
peace and should be included in the draft article, However, the dividing line
between crimes against peace and crimes against  humanity appeared to be somewhat
a r t i f i c i a l , and he feared that it might give rise to misleading interpretations as
to the relative seriousness  of  a  part icular a c t  of t e r ror ism committed by an
individual or a group.

/ . . .



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 6

(Mr.1

18, He aleo questioned the provision In paraqraph  1 of draft article 16 stating
that acts of terrorism, in order to be considered as crimes against peace@  must be
of such a nature as to craate a state of terror in the minds of public! figures or
the general public. Reflection was needed as to how that provision would be
interpreted by a judge in weighing the seriousness of a particular act of terror,
and whether it would not impose too restriative an interpretation.

19. The Commission had been unable to reach agreement on draft article 17,
concerning breach of a treaty designed to ensure  international peace and security.
The principle involved was not limited to the narrow sphere of treaties to which
some States might be parties and othorw not, but was equally relevant to any
international obligation to which eclrme States might not her or might not consider
themselves to be, parties. The detailed analysis of the nature of an international
obligation and its breach, as set out in the commentary to p&t one of the draft
art icles  on State responsibi l i ty  (-ok of the
uu& v o l . II (Part Two)) might guide the Commission in ite current consideration
of the subject, especially in determining when any action or inaction, whether in
respect of a treaty or another form of international obligation, might constitute a
crime justiciable  within the framework of the draft Code.

20. Drawing attention to paragraphs 77 to 88 of the Commission’s report (A/45/10),
he said that the debate on whether drug trafficking should be treated as a crime
again6 t peace, a crime against humanity or a crime against the peace and security
of mankind once again indicated the embiquitiee involved i n  three distinctions.

With regard to the question of establishing an international criminal
i:;isdiction, he had found the summary of previous efforts in that direction to be
instruct ive. His country had, from the earliest discussions of the topic, been
active in advocating such a jurisdiction. The Special Rapporteur might consider
extending his summary to include a more detailed analysis of the draft statutes
already proposed.

22. While his country’s observations and suggestions during the period 1950 to
1953 had been based on the situation existing at the time and were outdated in some
respects, their general theme remained valid, as did the material linkage which
they had demonstrated between drawing up a list of the gravest of crimes against
the peace and security of mankind and the establishment of an international
criminal  jurisdict ion.

23. It was necessary to guarantee that any international criminal jurisdiztion
would not be linked to political currents, and that its judges would retain their
independence and integrity. Before any State chose to concede its own criminal
jurisdiction in respect of any individual or group which had sommitted  grave crimes
against  i ts  people or territory, it would have to be confident that the
international court exercising jurisdiction was entireiy capable of doing so
impartial ly. That again underscored the necessity for the instrument which would
serve  as the basis for such jurisdiction to be so clear and unambiguous as not to
be open to any form of interpretation other than on questions of fact and law



A/C. 6/45/8B.  36
English
Page 7

directly related to the crime i tself . Any ambiguity stemming from a partisan
interpretation of the text, and any political loophole, could pre,&dice  the status
and authority of the court ana reduce its effectiveness.

i

24. The nat\\re of the relationship between an international criminal jurisdiction
and the United Nations required detailed analysis, not only with regard to the
option reflected to in paragraph 136 of the report , which referred to Oeneral
Assembly or Security Council authorisation for the submission of cases, but also
with regard to such questions as the election of judges and the composition of the
court. Clearly, elections on the basis of the current geoyraphical  representation
of the United Nations would not guarantee a truly universal choice of judges.

25. Concerning the question of penalties, including the reference to capital
punishment in paragraph 149 of the report, the Commission might consider that the
matter should be viewed in the light of the penal policy of the submitting State.
There might be systems in which capital punishment was applicable for crimes
against llumanity of a particularly grave and serious nature, The question might be
analysed by the Commission in considering the question of penal provisions and in
the light of the draft statutes prepared in 1950 and 1953.

26. Mr. M&XQXb  (Barbados) said that his delegation was encouraged to note the
progress made by the Commission at its forty-second session on a number of issues,
particularly the topics  of  the jurisdict ional  immunit ies  of  St&tee and their
property, and the law of the non-navigational uses of international watercourses.

27. Barbados had noted with interest the Special Rapporteur’s  eighth report on the
draft Coae of Crimes against the Peace and Security of Mankind
(A/CN,4/430  and Add.l). It was pleased to note the Commission’s determination to
give priority to thst topic with a view to completing the first reading of the
draf t  ar t i c le s  a t  i t s  next  ses s ion .

26. The security of small developing States, particulariy  island developing
States, was constantly challenged by external threats. Barbados was therefore
pleased to note that the three new draft articles provisionally adopted by the
Commission at its 1990 session dealt with three of the most insidious threats to
the sovereignty and security of small States, namely, mercenarism, drug
traff icking, and international terrorism.

29. His delegation had been among those instrumental in having the question of the
activities of mercenaries placed on the United Nations agenda, and had been an
active participant in the negotiating process that had paved the way for the
finalisation of the 1989 International Convention on mercenaries. Barbados
therefore supported the specif ic  inclusion of  that  i l l ic i t  act ivity in the draft
Code. It noted, however, that the current draft provided for the attribution of
the crime only to agents or representatives of a State. It would hope that the
acts of individuals could also be included in the scope of the draft, as was the
case in articles 2 and 3 of the Convention.

/ . . .



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 8

30. The modern phenomenon of drug trafficking had frightening implications for all
States, but especially for small States. Drug trafficking constituted both a crime
against peace and  security and a crime against humanity, in his delegation’s view.
Barbados was generally satisfied with the treatment of the issue in the most recent
text, and was pleased to note that the proposed draft also dealt comprehensively
with the question of money-1aunJering.

31. Barbados commended Trinidad and Tobago for its proposals concerning the
establishn?nt  of an jnternational  criminal court, and reaffirmed the support that,
together with other members of the Caribbean Community (CARICOM),  it had given to
those proposals. The matter had been referred to the CARICOM Standing Committee of
Ministers of Legal Affairs for detailed study, and Barbados would, after having had
the benefit of that study, state i ts  definit ive poeit iun on the various options
explored by the Commission in chapter II, section C,  of  i ts  report  (A’45110).

32. Barbados did not believe that finalisation of the draft Code was necessarily a
prerequisite for the elaboration of a statute for an international criminal court.
The comprehensive proposals prepared by the Commissior~  at its forty-second session,
in response to General Assembly resolution 44139, had done much to present the
concept in sharper focus. Barbados supported the view that if the Commission was
mandated to advance its work in that regard on the basis of comments received from
States, it would be in a position to make early recommendations on an appropriate
enforcement mechanism, should the draft Code be finalised in the near future.
Alternatively, i f  substantial delays were envisaged in the establishment of the
Code, consideration could be given to the possibility of activating the mechanism
initially in respect of a reauced  number of international crimes.

33. Indeed, Barbados believed that both activities - the f inal isat ion of  the draft
Code and consideration of the question of establishing an international criminal
jur i sd ic t ion  - should be pursued as priorities during the Decade of International
Law.

34. b. Um (Nigeria), referring to the topic of the draft Code of Crimes
against the Peace and Security of Mankind, noted that part one of the Special
Rapporteur’s eighth report dealt with complicity, conspiracy and attempt. In some
cases, it was difficult to distinguish between what constituted specific offences
and what constituted general principles. Nigeria was inclined to regard
complicity, conspiracy and attempt as actions constituting important ingredients of
specif ic  offences. The actions in question were forms of accessory participation.

35. International terrorism with State involvement, and the recruitment, use,
financing and training of mercenaries , which were dealt with in articles 16 and 18,
respectively, as provisionally adopted by the Commission, clearly constituted
crimes against peace. However, the non-inclusion of the activities of mercenaries
themselves in draft article 18 created a very serious lacuna. E v e n  though  dra f t
article 12 referred to mercenaries, the criminality of  such activit ies  should be
emphasised in draft article 18. The  c la s s i f i ca t ion  o f  dra f t  ar t i c le  X,  on  i l l i c i t
traffic in narcotic drugs, was somewhat problematic. On its own, drug trafficking

/ . . .



A/Ce6/45/SR.36
English
Page 9

was a crime against humanity. When viewed in the wider context of possible
linkages between drug barons and drug cartels , o n  the one hand, and both terrorists
and mercenaries, on the other, it posed a threat to international peace and
security, and as such could qualify as a crime against peace. Article X clearly
established that heinous crime as  an international crime.

36. Nigeria strongly believed, in that connection, that efforts must continue to
be intensified at the bilateral and regional levels to put in place more effective
mechanisms for co-operation and mutual assistance in the suppression of illicit
drug production, trafficking and abuse. Nigeria had entered into agreements on
mutual assistance in law enforcement matters with some countries, while negotiating
similar bilateral arrangements with others. Moreover, it had enacted laws imposing
stiff penalties for drug offences and had established a national drug law
enforcement agency in 1990.

37. On the question of an international criminal jurisdiction, Nigeria was happy
to note that the Commission had examined possible options concern ing  the legal
force of judgements rendered by the proposed court, penalties, implementation of
judgements, and financing . Nigeria was in favour of an  international criminal
court with exclusive j ur i sd ic t ion , without prejudice to the principles of the
sovereignty of States and the self-determination of peoples, and provided that the
decision to take cases to the court lay with States themselves. Nigeria recognised
that an international court offered the advantage of uniform application of all the
provisions of the Code , which should remain indicative. I t  a l so  realimed tha t  an
international crime might lead to a dispute between States, and that the
international court would provide a third-party dispute-settlement mechanism. In
so doing, it would contribute to the maintenance of international peace and
security.

38. Nigeria wished to make a formal proposal that the dumping of nuclear and
hasardous waste in the territories of ather States should be included in the Code.
Nigeria st i l l  had diff iculty in identifying the practical  means of  enforcing the
decisions of an international criminal court. It would not make sense to resort to
national facilities of States for the implementation of such judgemente. On the
question of the financing of the court, Nigeria would prefer the United Nations to
assume that reSpOASibility,  which might however prove difficult, if not impossible,
without a commensurate increase in Member States’ contributions. In conclusion,
Nigeria wished to emphasise that the idea of establishing an international trial
mechanism or an international criminal court deserved further study.

39. M~_L_AJ~&J (Panama) said that his delegation noted that the right of asylum was
iAClUded  in the list of topics drawn up by the Chairman of the Working Croup on the
United Nations Decade of International Law. For over 20 years, more specifically

I ’since the -up d etat of 11 October 1968, Panamanians associated with the
opposition to the military dictatorship had, year after year, unsuccessfully
denounced in all international forums, particularly the Organimation  of American
States, the defencelessness of the Panamanian people. Some of the principal
perpetrators of the crimes committed against the Panamanian people during those

/ . I .



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 10

(Mr.1

years had now taken refuge at various embassies of Latin American States in
Panama. All the individuals In question , who were former collaborators with
Noriega, were laying claim to the right cf asylum.

40. In that connection, the Pansmanian Government wished to stress that it was
acting in accordance with article 14 of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights,
which - while stipulating that everyone had the right to seek and to enjoy in other
countries asylum from persecution - specified that that right could not be invoked
in the case of prosecutions genuinely arising from non-political crimes or from
acts contrary to the purposes and principles of the United Nations.

Furthermore, Panama wished to draw attention to article 1 of the Declaration
nonterritorial Asylum (General Assembly resolution 2312 0(X11)),  which - while
referring in paragraph 1 to “persons entitled to invoke article 14 of the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights@’  - specified in paragraph 2 that the right to seek and
to enjoy asylum could not be invoked by any perern with respect to whom there were
serious reasons for considering that he had committed a crime against peaceI a war
crime or a crime against humanity, as defined in the international instruments
drawn up to make provision in respect of such crimes.

42. Panama wish& to refer to article 6 of the Charter of the Niirnberg Tribunal,
which stipulated that the Tribunal should have the power to try and punish persons
who, whether as individuals or as members of organisations, committed, inter,
crimes against humanity, neunely,  murder, extermination, enslavement, deportation,
and other inhumane acts committed against any civilian population, or persecutions
OA political, racial or religious grounds in execution of or in connection with any
crime within the jurisdiction of the Tribunal, whether or not in violation of the
domestic law of the country where perpetrated. The last paragraph of article 6
specif ied thst leaders,  organise s , inst igators  and accomplices  participating in
the formulation or execution of a common plan or conspiracy to commit any of the
foregoing crimes were responsible for all acts performed by any persons in
execution of such plans (United Nations, -series, v-1. 82, No. 251).

43. The relevant principles laid down in the legal irrstruments  in question should
be consolidated as part of the process of the codification of international law.
Likewise, the principle that persons accused of perpetrating crimes against
humanity should be denied the right of asylum must be maintained.

44. Mr.  VUM (Yugoslavia)  said that, in  his  delegation’s  view, the concepts  o f
complicity, coneoiracy  and attempt formed part of the general principles of law
referred to in Article 38, paragraph 1 (c), of the Statute of the International
Court of Justice. The new versions of the draft articles dealing with those
concepts  submittea by the Special Rapporteur (section B.1 of chapter II of the
Commission’s report (A/45/10)) represented generally satisfactory definitions of
tht,de pr inc ip le s . His delegetion took the view that the activities concerned were
forms of participation in the commission of a certain crime1 considered that
complicity, conspiracy and attempt should not be treated as separate offences in
the draft Code, but should be placed in the part of the draft dea.ling with general

/ . . .



A/C,6/45/8R.36
English
Page 11

(Mt.)

principles. Some crimes, however, might require that complicity, conspiracy or
attempt should be specifically taken into account in their regard! such
requirements, if any, should be determined in connection with *.he definition of
each particular crime.

45, Turning to the question of illicit traffic in narcotic drugs (section B.2 of
chapter II), he said that notwithstanding his Qovernment’s strongest condemnation
of that crime and profound disdain in regard to its perpetrators, the crime Lsr sa
could not be characterired  as a crime against peace. T h e  f a c t  t h a t  i l l i c i t  t r a f f i c
in AarCOtiC drug6 was often linked with terrorism  and was a potential source Of
conflict between States did not provide sufficient grounds in that respect, and his
delegation would therefore prefer it to be characterised as a crime against
humanity.

46. His delegation shared the view of those who opposed the inclusion of an
article concerning breach of a treaty designed to ensure international peace and
SeCUrity  in thr draft Code. IA addition to the arguments referred to in
paragraph 91 of the report, it considered that the very notion of “treaties
designed to ensure international peace and security” was so vague that to attempt
to legislate against breaches of such treaties meant dealing with a body of
international law which was completely lacking in definition.

47, With regard to section C of chapter II, he recalled that his delegation had
accepted the idea of the establishment of an international criminal jurisdiction as
far back as the forty-second session of the General Assembly. It welcomed
paragraphs 117 to 122 of the report, which realistically reflected the many
difficulties which would have to be overcome before such a mechanism was
established. On the question of the jurindiction of an international criminal
court, his delegation favoured the first of the options referred to in
paragraph 123, but considered that States parties to international conventions
other than the Code should not be prevented from conferring jurisdiction upon the

c o u r t . With regard to the nature of the court’s jurisdiction, Yugoslavia Bid not
think that more than a review competence was plausible at the present stage of
development of international law. All States, organisations and individuals having
an intorest in a case should be entitled to submit the case to the court, On the
question of institutional structure, his delegation favoured the second solution
proposed in paragraph 139, and on that of election of judges, the third option
proposed in paragraph 142; the judges should, as far as possible, represent the
main legal systems of the world. The court’s decisions should take precedence over
the judgements of national courts.

40. Referring to the relationship between the Commission aAa the General Assembly
(section A of chapter VIII), he said that his delegation would prefer the
consideration of the report of the Commission to be structured as a direct dialogue
between the Sixth Committee aAd the Co~ission.  Under the present system,
representatives in the Sixth Committee, including members of the Commission,
delivered lengthy statements the Commissi9n’s  reaction to which would not be known
until the publication of the next report, or even later. His delegation would

/ . . .



A/C,6/45/SR.36
English
P a g e  1 2

prefer shorter statements on selected topics, and a dialogue between
representatives and the C o m m i s s i o n ’ s  members , more particularly the Special
Rapporteurs,

49. Mr. w (United States of America) said that in discussing the topic of the
draft Code, all delegations started from a common positiont all were profoundly
concerned at the spread of international crime, all shared the goal of eradicating
it, and all were extremely interested in any proposals to that end. It was with
regret, therefore, that his delegation felt unable to join those delegations which
had expressed approval of the Comtnission~s  work on the draft Code. Like the
delegation of Italy, it thought that the exeroise should be considered in the light
of its costs and anticipated benefits. The costs were made up of the time spent by
the C o m m i s s i o n  and the Sixth Committee on the topic, causing the completion of
other topics to be delayed, and of the much greater financial and economic costs
whiph would arise in the event of the Code’s implementation and, more particularly,
of the establishment of an international criminal court. They might, however, be
considered manageable if it seemed that the Code might indeed serve as a weapon in
the struggle against crimes such as terrorism and drug trafficking. But if it was
a chimera which merely diverted attention from more fruitful ways of combating
international crime, then they were prohibitively high.

50. The key to determining the Code’s potential usefulness was its acceptance by
the international community. The Commission’s work on the topic at its
forty-second session merely Confirmed  his delegation’s conviction that, as it was
now being shaped, the Code would not command the acceptance required. Noting the
absence of an international consensus on what acts by individuals should be
considered crimes against the peace and security of mankind, he said that his
delegation continued to assume that the Code was intendeu  to apply to acts of
individuals and not to those of States.

51. International agreement existed on many of the acts covered by the draft, for
example, aggression by States in violation of the Charter of the United NathAS.
The difficulty consisted in transforming general agreement about how States should
behave into specific criminal provisions designed to regulate the actions of
individuals. The international ccmmunitq* would doubtless agree that certain acts
of individuals in connection with State aggression were violations of international
lawr recent events in the PereSan Gulf brought that out very clearly. But
article 12 of the draft Code went beyond defining such acts BAar as a result, was
too vague to command international agreement. A similar problem arose in
connection with other provisions, such as those on drug trafficking and
international terrorism. There was a large gap between the general abhorrence at
those acts and the specific and detailed proviszons needed in the criminal code,
and the Commission bad SC far failed to ‘bridge rt. More PUndsmeAtally,  States did
not seem to agree as to which acts should be dealt with in a universal code rather
th8A through specific international conventions, national lnws and agreements on
enforcement. Existing international conventior,e  on specific crimes were useful,
but their relatively small number suggested that time was not ripe to codify the
entire field of international criminal lawt it also emphasised the extent to which

/ . . I



A/C,6/45/8R.36
English
Page 13

(Mr._)

the Commission was, in effect, making new law, By drawing upon specific provieions
from existing instruments, the Commission might avoid certain diLficulties,  but
would probably give rise to otherar in fact, the procedure might run the risk of
disturbing the consensus already achieved ani thus prove actually dangerous.

52. While it did not mean to imply that a code of international crimes could never
be drafted, or that specific international crimes on which international consensus
might be achieved could not be identified, his delegation felt that the attempt to
codify the whole field of international criminal law was over-ambitious and
premature, and therefore urged the Commission once again to spend its time on more
useful endeavours. His Qo\ernment’s  specific comments on the draft articles
provisionally adopted at the Commission’s forty-second session were supplied
eeparately in writing,

53. The Commission’s outline of issues antl options in connection with the
establishment of an international  criminal court provided a useful basis for more
detailed analysis of the problem as a whole. The suggestion that the court might
operate, at least at first, independently of the Code, and exercise jurisdiction
over a narrower range of crimes, such as those defined in existing international
conventions, would resolve the main difficulty he had mentioned in connection with
the Code. A Code without a court would seem unhelpful, but a court might be of
some uee without a Code. However, effective national and international system6 for
dealing with international crimes were already in place and, as pointed out in
paragraph 118 of the report (A/45/10), there was a danger of their being disrupted
by the establishment of a court. The question of the court’s interaction with
existing national and international systems of criminal law enforcement was a
fundamental one and should be considered very carefully. There were also many
practical questions which had to be addressed before States could decide whether
the court would complement the existing machinery or merely interfere with it. For
example, what rules of evidence and procedure would the court apply? How would
evidence be obtained? Who would conduct the investigation and prosecution, and who
would make the crucial decisions as to which individuals should be prosecuted? 35
appeared that the court might require a large prosecution arm and ptbrhaps a penal
f a c i l i t y . What would be their cost7 How would they be administered7 Most
important, how would the answers to those questions affect the current system of
national and international enforcement7

54. Qiven the relatively early stage of the Commission’s consideration of those
questions,  his  delegation took the view that  the C o m m i s s i o n  should not  be invited
to focus its attention on the question of the type of court which should be
established;  rather, it should be requested to continue its analysis in greater
detail, with particular emphasis on practical matters pertaining to the court’s
relationship to the existing system of enforcement. The results of such an
analysis would make it easier to decide what model of a court, if any, would be
most likely to enhance the international community’s ability to combat crimes which
affected al l  nations.



A/C.6/45/8R.36
English
Page 14

55. Turning to the topic of international liability for injurious consequences
arising out of acts not prohibited by international law (chapter VII of the
report), he said that his Qovernment  had not ohanged its view that the Commission
should  recons ider  a t  l eas t  for  the  t ime  b e i n g ,  i t s  ob jec t i ve  o f  dra f t ing  ar t i c le s
for Inclusion i n  a convention on the topic, Ae with the draft Code, the exercise
appeared over-ambitious in view of the lack of consensus. His delegation therefore
reiterated its suggestion that the Commission should consider confining itself to
the elaboration of draft general principles on the topic, with e view to assisting
States in the examination of  specif ic  related questions.  His  delegation’s  replies
to the two specific questions raised by the Commission in connection with the topic
were supplied in writing separately,

56. Mr. VILLAQRANgaAMEB  (Quatemala)  said that although his delegation had had
doubts two years earlier regarding the usefulness of pursuing dieoussione  in the
Commission on the draft Code of Crimes against the Pease and Security of Mankind,
those doubts had been alleviated by the preeentation, by the delegation of Trinidad
and Tobago in 1989, of the full political and legal dimensions of international
drug trafficking. Moreover, the Commission had in a short timt presented
significant factors ta be considered with respect to the establishment of an
international criminal jurisdiction to deal with such crimes.

57. The &hUle CJBU.KQ  hijacking, the Noriega case, the vast impact of the drug
problem Jn Colombia and other countries, and the situation in the Persian Qulf
prompted the idea that sanctions might at some point be applied not to States, but
to government leaders, by courts along the lines of the Nirnberg  Tribunal. While
his delegation understood the concerns expressed by the United States delegation
regarding the costs and benefits of the proposed court, it felt that the Commission
definitely should continue to consider the question, and should prepare a much more
complete text during the coming year.

58. The question of tha nature of the proposed court’s jurisdiction called for
polit ical ,  not  legal,  answers. The key question was whether States were ready to
entrust cases involving heinous crimes to a more expeditious system. In his
delegation’s view, the concepts of a court with concurrent jurisdiction and one
having only review competence were not mutually exclusive, and the draft Code could
envisage both options. As to who might submit cases to the court, his delegation
felt  that  in addit ion to States, in certain situations intergovernmental
organiaatione could play a useful role. He drew attention in that connection to
the valucble  example provided by the Inter-American Commission on Human Rights.
The requisite political will was what made such an arrangement succeed.

59. Turning to the new articles proposed by the Special Rapporteur on complicity,
conspiracy and attempt, he said that the Commission had to prepare a more detailed
list of the crimes to be included in the Code, before those cozcopte could bs fully
defined. Such a l is t  would also faci l i tate consideration of the m:eneitive  issues
of the competence retione and rationamateridg of the proposed court.
While the Code was to be applicable to individu,..ls,  he also could foresee it
extending to States and legal persons, for example, in cases involving terrorism or
drug trafficking.

/ ..*



A/C.6/45/SR.36
Engl ieh
Page 15

60. The Commission had before it a basic document for consideration of its future
programme of work, and his delegation welcomed the recognitiwa  by a number of
delegations that economic issues merited the Commission’s attention. Other
preening issues, including international drug trafficking, disarmament,
environmental matters, foreign-debt problems and the Decade of International Law,
provided further input for the Commission’s future work.

61, Mr. PI- (Costa Rica) said that the draft Code of Crimes against the
Peace end Security of Mankind, the question of State responsibility in general and
the question of international liability for injurious consequences arising out of
acts not prohibiteU  by international law all involved intricately linked issues
pertaining to the rights of fndivfduals, States and the international community,
guarantees of those rights, the strength of the authority of the bodies responsible
for implementing those guarantees and of their decisions, and the responsibilities
arising from the infringement of those rights.

62. Turning first to the draft Code, he said that the concepts of complicity,
conspiracy and attempt required further refinement, With regard to article X, on
i l l i c i t  t ra f f i c  in  drugs , his delegation continued to believe that the
international scope of the problem demanded an international solution, that drug
trafficking should be described as a crime in the draft Code, and that the
Commission should focus on drug trafficking on a large scale. While drug users
certainly bore responsibi l i ty  f o r  drug traff icking, it would not be practical to
define drug use as an international crime. It  should be specif ical ly stated that
traffic in drugs on a large scale was a crime which all States - irrespective of
where the actual crime had taken place - could prosecute and which, in the most
set ious ins tancee, could be prosecuted by an international jurisdiction.

63. With regard to draft article 16, on international terrorism, the definition
must clearly state that the crime included acts perpetrated by individuals who were
not agents or representatives of a State. In the matter of State responsibility,
there  c l e a r l y  ex is ted  a  l ink  between a n  act  o r  omiesion  by  a n  a g e n t  or  organ  o f  the
State and the harm attributable thereto. However, that was not the case where
responsibility lay directly with the perpetrator or the accomplices.

64. As to article 18, concerning mercenar ies ,  paragraph 1 appeared to apply the
definition of criminal o n l y  to agents who recruited, used, financed or trained
mercenaries , and not to the mercenaries themselves. With respect to paragraphs 2
and 3, he said that the definition of “mercenary” appeared to exclude individuals
who committed o n e  of the acts listed f o r  a reason other than the expectation of
receiving materiel compensation, He trusted that that point would be properly
addressed in another paragraph,

65. With respect to the proposed article 17, on breach of a treaty designed to
ensure internaticqal  peace and security, his delegation shared the concerns
expressed in the Commission regarding the princ!.ple  of universality. He cautioned
even more strongly against using a generic and atypical definition. The 1 anguage
of the draft Code should be specific enough to ensure that a penalty could be



A1C.61451SR.36
English
Page 16

(Mr. PiR+RoqR,fgrt.  Costa)

imposed only in accordance with the principles of due process and
nulla*

66. Accordingly, aach crime should be clearly defined using standard language, and
the Code as well as the international criminal jurisdiction should come into play
only in cases  i n v o l v i n g  the most serious international  crimes. W h i l e  e n d o r s i n g  t h e
principle of non-applicability of statutory limitations to crimes against the peace
an8 security of mankind, his delegation considered that full judicial guarantees
and the principle of u i n  a must apply,M o r e o v e r ,  h i s  d e l e g a t i o n  w o u l d  b e
unable fully to adhere to the draft Code, particularly to article 4, concerning
extradition, unless the death penalty was specifically ruled out.

67, As to the proposed international criminal jurisdiction, he said that the
c o m p e t e n c e  rstione of the proposed court should apply to the crimes
specifically spelt out in the Code, while  st i l l  al lowing for gradations.
Accordingly, as the Commission had suggested, in the case of certain crimes,
reservations concerning the jurisdiction or competence of the court, or the
obligation to extradite envisaged in draft article 4, should be allowed.

66. As to the nature of the court’s jurisdiction, his delegation favoured the
third option, an international criminal court having only a review competence. As
in the field of human rights, exceptions should be allowed to the rule that
internal remedies must have been exhausted. Consideration should also be given to
the possibility of establishing some sort of mur de cassation  along the French
model during the early stages of the court’s existence, and to the application by
the court of some form of m as in the Anglo-Saxon tradition.

69, The structure of the court should be defined and established in the Code
itself, and the court should be part of the United Nations system. That would not
require en amendment to the Charter. The legal force of gudgemsnte  should be
ensured; all the judgements should be binding. He noted in that connection  that
certain of the decisions of the Inter-American Court of Human Rights were binding,
and that his Qovernment accorded them the same status as those of its highest
domestic courts. The proposed international court must have similar guarantees if
its decisions were to be respected. For the time being, judgemente should be
implemented under national systems , ensuring that the minimum rules for the
treatment of offenders were observed.

70. Turning to chapters  V and VII of  the C o m m i s s i o n ’ s  report  (A/45/10),  he
emphasised that while States continued to be the principal subjects to which
international  responsibi l i ty  attached, the application to them of criminal
sanctions was neither feasible nor useful, and the effectiveness of principles
guiding the conduct of States in matters such as environmental protection would
continue to have its fundamental legal basis in the patrimonial responsibility of
States under international law.



A/C.6/45/8R.36
English
Page 17

71. Five factors must  exist  to give rise to State responsibil i ty.  First ly,  clear,
compensable damage must exist (not just possible damage); secondly, such damage
must  be directly or indirectly attributable to the responsible subject)  thirdly,
the dsmage must be contrary to what is legal (the injured party muet not be
obligated to bear the injury)1 fourthly, there must be no concurrent cause8
providing any legal justification for the damager and, f ifthly,  there must  exist  a
direct or indirect, but i n  any event appropriate, causal link between the act or
omission (cause) attributable to the State and the compensable damage (effect).
The concepts of fault and wrongfulness must continue to play a key role in
determining the extent of reparation. The causal link between the unlawful act and
the damage or between the lawful act and the damage, rather than immediate or
exclusive, should be appropriate.

72, His delegation could not agree with those members of the Commission who felt
that. in the determination of responsibility for wrongful acts, the principle of the
juridical equality of States should not apply where obvious differences between
States existed. However , flexible payment schedules could be worked out when the
amount of reparation to be paid by less developed countries was being determined.
On the other hand, such differences should be taken into account in connection with
responsibi l i ty  for lawful  acts . Material damage should be compensated in
accordance with the principle of equivalency. Moral and personal harm, although
also assessable and indemnifiable in pecuniary terms, gave rise to reparation based
on the principle of equity recognised by the Statute of the International Court of
Justice.

73. His delegation was in favour of any steps to protect the environment for
future generations, and therefore endorsed the idea underlying the draft articles
on international liability for injurious consequences arising out of acts not
prohibited by international law, to the effect  that  States and,  ult imately,  private
e n t i t i e s , had responsibilities to protect the environment that went beyond their
contractual obligations.

74. His country, given its long history of democracy and the significant strides
it had made with respect to education, health and poli t ical  and social  s tabi l i ty,
depended very heavily on the rule of law. It accordingly attached the utmost
importance to the development of international law and the work of the
International Law Commission.

7 5 .  Mr. Mikwlka  (Ceechoelovakia)  w*

76, Mrs.- (Cuba) welcomed the progress made by the Special Rapporteur on
the draft Code of Crimes against the Peace and Security of Mankind. The Code
should be sufficiently broad to identify all the acts that must be delimited
therein.

77, In view of differences in the methodology and treatment of complicity,
conspiracy and attempt - all forms of participation - under the criminal
legislat ion of  different countries, the task of codifying those concepts was very

/ .I.



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 10

(Mrs,)

complex. Its complexity was compounded by the need to determine the degree of
responsibility attaching to each criminal act in order clearly to delimit the
precise content of each act. Accordingly, the question of responsibility and its
application to crimes against the peace and security of mankind should be very
clearly enunciated in the future Code so as not to invite multiple interpretations
of the norms involved.

78. Her delegation was pleased that international trafficking in drugs was
included as a crime against the peace and security of mankind, as reflected in
draft articles X and Y as submitted by the Special Rapporteur. She emphasised the
importance of co-operation among Stat:-s to combat international drug trafficking.
The failure of some States to co-operate by combating manifestations of that crime
within their own territory, including transit, distribution, sale, consumption and
money-laundering, contributed to the disintegration of sociely. Her delegation
welcomed the emphasis which paragraph 85 of the Commiseion’s  report (A/45/10)
placed on international co-operation as a key to the eradication of the scourge of
drug trafficking. Cuba had adopted bilateral co-operation agreements with some
countries, while in other cases, the lack of political will had prevented their
conclusion. The relevant provisions of such agreements should preserve the
principles  of  sovereignty,  territorial  integrity and polit ical  independence.

79. She reiterated her delegation’s doubts regarding the desirability of
establishing an international criminal court. The subject was highly
controversial, given the existence of different legal systems and the likelihood
that  confl icts  would arise,  intsr with respect  to the nature of  the court,
whether there should be concurrent jur;sdiction, and matters pertaining to
extradition, cases in which a crime occurred in a third State, priority of
jur i sd ic t ion , operation and composition of the court, and financial issues. It
also had to be determined whether the court would be linked with the Unite6  Nations
or would function independently. Her delegation was opposed to the idea of an
international court with exclusive jurisdiction] Cuba would not cede national
criminal  jurisdict ion, Other question6 to which the proposal gave rise included
the structure of the court, enforcement of penalties, the application of the
principle of extraterritoriality to nationals and their property, and the question
of who could initiate proceedings.

80. The current international situation had little impact on the profound
differences of views regarding the scope of the proposed court, and it was thus
premature to link the draft Code to such a mechanism. The Commission first had to
define in explicit legal terme the acts or offences which should be included in th
Code, such as aggression, the practices of &l&&Mid, colon!alism  and other forms
of foreign domination, international terrorism, mercsnarism, the threat and use of
force, and international drug trafficking. The Commission must also devise
provisions covering Status which disregarded the Judgments of the International
Court of Justice.

81. With respect to articls 18, on the recruitment, user financing and training c
mercenaries, her delegation felt that the definitfo.rl  should have been broader and



A/C,6/45/SR.36
English
Page I.9

(&?ts. Silvera, Cuba)

should net have been linked with that of the 1989 Convention, which was limited in
scope.

8 2 . Her delegation looked forward to further progress by the Commission on the
Code and on other important i&suer of international law which called for urgent
attention in the light of the activities planned for the Decade of International
Law.

8 3 . Mr. JACOVIDES (Cyprus) said that the report of the International Law
Commission fA/45/1G) showed that both the Commisbion and the Secretariat h-.!.: c;nce
again performed substantive and solid work, and that, responding to Generai
Assembly resolution 44/35, the Commission had succeeded in considering all the six
topics in its current programme of work.

8 4 . The Commission had also responded promptly and fully to the request of the
General Assembly on the important question of the establishment of an international
criminal jurisdiction. In his delegation's view, priority should be given to the
draft Code of Crimes against the Peace and Security of Mankind and the question of
State responsibility, without detracting from the importance of other topics.

8 5 . With regard to chapter II of the report, he said that the Special Rapporteur
had submitted three draft articles dealing with conspiracy, complicity and attempt
which were eminently suited to inclusion in the proposed draft Code, thus keeping
pace with the concerns of the international community. His delegation, on the
basis of its long-held view that the draft Code should incorporate the tnree
elements of crimes, penalties and jurisdiction, welcomed the Commission's
conclusion on tbe desirability of establishing an international criminal court:
such a court would be a progressive stey in thp further development of
international law and, if widely supported b;r &he international community, would
strengthen the international rule of law.

86. Also in connection with chapter II, his delegation noted and generally
approved the three articles provisionally adopted at the Commission's most rezent
session, on international terrorism, mercenaries and illicit traffic in narcotic
drugs. It recalled the support it had expressed in the Sixth Committee in 1989 for
the inclusion in the draft Code of an appropriate provision, to follow draft
articles 12 and 13, to cover the case of deliberate non-compliance by an aggressor
witb binding decisions of the Security Council. The proposal, for a third phase
after the threat of aggression and aggression itself, was a logical step towards
filling a gap, and had certainly proved prophetic in the light of the Gulf crisis.
His delegation supported its inclusion in the draft Code in the interests 0" .raking
provision for the type 02 illegal actions which had taken place in Ruwaii an.. in
the occupied part of Cyprus as a result of foreign aggression and occupatio:l. The
two situations were not, of course, identical, but some of the issues involved, and
the principles at stake, were certainly the same.

87. Regarding chapter III, entitled "Jurisdictional immunities of States and their
property", his delegation, while not underestimating the need to resolve the

/ I . l



A/C.6/4"ISK.36
English
Page 20

remaining substantive issues, was pleased to note the substantive progress achieved
towards finalixinq the draft articles.

88. Similarly, in the context of chapter IV, "The law of the non-navigational uses
of international watercourses", it welcomed the prediction that by the next session
there would be a complete set of draft articles on the topic adopted by the
Commission on first reading.

89. Turning to chapter V, "State responsibility", he said that more rapid progress
should be made on the topic, particularly in view of its importance and its
relationship with other topics, such as the draft Code and international liability
for injurious consequences arising out of acts not prohibited by international
law. In that connection, he wished to state his delegation's view that it was no
longer appropriate for discussion of State tesponsibility  to concentrate on injury
to aliens, thus catering to the requirements of a small number of powerful,
developed States, often at the expense of weaker and less developed States. The
topic of State responsibility now had a much broader foundation, and it was
recognised by such organs as the International Court of Justice, that there existed
obligations srra omnes, and that the interests of the international community as a
whole must be duly taken into account. The Commission must ensure that the
expectations of the international community, and in particular those of States
which had come into existence after the classical rules of international law on
that topic had been formulated, were not frustrated. It must also keep pace with
contemporary notions of international law, such as the concept of international
crimes, and recognize the opportunity provided by recent shifts of attitude on the
part of the major Powers in accepting the notion of compulsory third-party dispute
settlement. Proceirures  for such settlement should undoubtedly be included in the
draft articles currently being elaborated on State responsibility.

90. Problems continued to arise, however, with regard to the concept of
"economically assessable damage" and "punitive damages", and he agreed that the
restoration of a situation through restitution in kind should be given priority
whenever such restitution was legally and practically possible: it was indeed
indispensable where there had been a violation of ius coae $n l His delegation also
took the view that the issue of interest should be made part of draft article 8.
rather than being included as a separate draft article 9. It was, none the less,
encouraged by the assurance that the Commission would be able to devote more time
to a topic which was of such importance.

91. On chapter VI, "Relations between States and international organisations", his
delegation noted that suhstar&ive progress had been achieved, as was evidenced by
the fact that 11 draft articles had been referred to the Drafting Committee.

9 2 . Notilg  de discussion on the complex rnd technical issues raised in some of
the proposed 73 draft articles on the topic "International liability for injurious
consequences arising out of acts not prohibited by international law" in
chapter VII of the report, he said that his delegation welcomed the extension of
liability to the "7lonal commons", and felt that ways shouid be found to attach

/ . . .



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 21

.(Mr. Jacovldes,  Cvvrw 1

more importance to protecting the environment under that item. It regarded the
first of the two policy questions raised in paragraph 531 of the report, namely,
the intro‘duction  of the list of dangerous substances in the context of a
Significant risk, as being unduly restrictive, but took a positive view of the
notion that liability should be incurred by the State of origin of transboundary
harm. In the lattc?r case, howevers the liability should be residual, and only if
the recourse by the innocent victim against the private operator did not provide
adequate remedy. In his delegation's view, the key consideration was that the
innocent victim should not be left to bear the damage. His delegation was also
receptive to the proposal made by the United Kingdom delegation for a status report
on the item as a whole.

9 3 . Section A of chapter VIII of the report dealt with the programme, procedures
and working methods of the Commission and its documentation. His delegation had
already stated its position on the priority to be given to specific items, and it
agreed with the view that there should be a closer relationship between the
Commission and the General Assembly and also the International Court of Justice.
It would also be useful to have closer co-operation with regional bodies in the
legal field. In addition, Cyprus supported the proposal to declare the 1990s as
the Decade of International Law, a proposal which had originated from the
Non-Aligned Movement. It was pertinent to mention, in that connection, that the
Commonwealth, representing a principal legal system and accounting for nearly a
third of the membership of the United Nations , was currently in the process of
reviewing in depth its priorities and areas of concern for the coming decade and
beyond. With that in mind, the International Law Commission would certainly
benefit from a closer association with that aspect of the Commonwealth's activities.

94. In terms of the Commission's long-term programme of work, his delegation would
warmly commend the suggestions made by the Working Group established at its
forty-first session, which were set out in footnote 325 of the report. One of the
suggestions was that the Commission could indicate to the General Assembly its
readiness to receive from the Assembly requests for legal opinions on some pressing
legal issues of international law, such as the question of the establishment of an
international criminal jurisdiction. His delegation keenly anticipated the
Commission's recommendations in that respect, and could suggest other possible
areas which could appropriately be looked into by the Commission in that context,
namely, the question of the implementation of United Nations retiolutions  and the
legal consequences of their non-implementation, and that of the binding nature of
Security Council resolutions.

95. Cyprus had accepted the compulsory jurisdiction of the International Court of
Justice, and was prepared to have the legal aspects of the Cyprus question and,
more particularly, Turkey's 1974 invasion and the consequences of the continuing
occupalion, authorita?ively  adjudicated by the highest judicial organ of the United
Nations.

96. Recent developments had laid renewed emphasis on the need to apply the rules
of international law and to implement United Nations resolutions. and had given



A/C,6/45/SR.36
Enllish
Page 22

(Mr.Jacavidee,HR)

small countries, such as his own, which had been victims of aggression and foreign
occupation fresh hope that peace with justice could be achieved through the
solution of long-standing regional problems within the framework of the United
Nations.

97. Referring to the question of elections to the International Law Commission,
his delegation wished to reiterate its view that the applicable rules for
nominations and the time-limits ior their submission should be adhered to in the
interest of ensuring fairness and the maximum range of choice.

98. Mr. (Australia) said that chapter VI of the Commission’s report
(A/45/10) dealt with an important topic, but one in which the relationship between
the constituent instruments of particular organisations  and the Commission’s
general  draft  art icles  was l ikely to present diff icult ies.

99. Referring to the draft articles considered by the Commission at its most
recent session, he said that the phrase “when the latter have accepted them” in
draft article 2, paragraph 1, appeared to introduce a requirement of recognition of
international organisations through the obscure and  imprecise criterion of
“acceptance”. What would in fact constitute “acceptance” for that purpose7 The
requirement threatened to i n troduce  elements of controversy which were all the more
undesirable as the draft articles applied only to international organisations of a
universal character. A requirement of specific acceptance by States was contrary
to the notion of objective legal personality adopted by the International Court of
Justice, and thus would be a regressive step. It should also be noted that the
provis ions of  the draft  art icles  did not  deal  directly with the central  issue of
legal personality in the domestic law of non-member States. Draft article 5 was
ronceined solely with “legal personality under international law and under the
internal  law” of aember States. Accordingly, while draft article 5 retained its
limited scope, there was even less  just i f ication for a n  “acceptanc6”  requirement in
paragraph 1 of article 2.

100. His delegation’s second comment related to draft articles 7 and 8, which dealt
with the jurisdictional immunity of international organisations and their
pr ;Jmises. In his 3elegation’s  view, those provisions required further detailed
6L ~¶y  on the part of the Commission. Among the more superficial difficulties
raised by the draft  art icles  was the fsct that,  under art icle 7,  i t  was n o t
possible for an international organisation to waive its irmounity  from executiona
such a provision contradicted the principle of consent and raised the question why
an express waiver, authorised by the competent organisation, should be ineffective.

101. The underlying issue, however, was whether international organisations should
continue to enjoy absolute immunity, despite the changes which had occurred in the
field of State immunity. It seemed extremely strange that State* could, through an
int?rnatfonal  organisation they had set up, enjoy immunity with respect to
tran,actions  which, had they performed them separately, would not be covered by
State immunity. The effect would be that third parties dealing with the
organizations  would bear the risk of default by some of the States parties, or of

/ . . .



A/C.6/45/SR.36
English
Page 23

(Mt.)

internal difficulties within a particular Organisation which the States parties
were in a position to control. Historically, the immunity of international
orqaniaations had developed by analogy with diplomatic immunity, ancl international
organisations had largely had delegated and representational functions. Doubts had
even been entertainet3  as to the separate legal personality of international
organisations. The current situation was very different, in that Lhere were more
international organisations than States, and those organisations were able to
engage in transactions, including those of a commercial and financial naLure, in
their own right. Some of those transactions, if carried out by States, would no
longer be the ubject  of jurisdictional immunity.

102. There should at least be some recognition of the need to protect third parties
in their dealings with international organisations. The rather vague reference to
“the functional requirements” of the organisations in draft article 11 did not go
far enough, since it was merely suggested as a basis for waiver by the orqanixation
of the immunity confirmed by other draft articles, Such waivers could take into
ac :ount any relevant matters, whether or not they related to “functional
requirements”.

103. His delegation agreed with the views expressed by the repreeentativs of
Germany with regard to the working methods of the Commission. It also supported
the call for a mid-term review of topics.

AQENDA ITEM 1441 REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COWITTEE  ON THE CHARTER OF THE ‘JNITED
NATIONS AND ON THE STRENGTHENING OF THE ROLE OF THE GRGANIZATION
(CMtipraaB)  (A/C.6/45/L.3, L.4)

104.  Hr. w (Phil ippines)  said that, had his delegation been present for the
vgtinq o n  draft  resolutions A/C,6/45/L.3 and L.4, it would have voted in favour of
them.

105. paK_m (Myanmar) and m (Namibia) said that, had their
delegations been present for the voting on draft resolution A/C.6/45/L.4,  they
wouid have voted i n  favour.


